

# **FINAL REPORT**

# **Regional District of Central Kootenay**

Sanca Park Water System Source Assessment



204 – 625 Front Street Nelson, B.C. V1L 4B6 Telephone: 250-352-9774

1045.0026.01 / March 2013

This report is prepared for the sole use of Regional District of Central Kootenay. No representations of any kind are made by Urban Systems Ltd. or its employees to any party with whom Urban Systems Ltd. does not have a contract.

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

1.0	EXE	CUTIVE SUMMARYI
2.0	ΙΝΤ	RODUCTION1
3.0	EXI	STING SYSTEM OVERVIEW2
	3.1	WATER LICENSE AND DEMAND
	3.2	SANCA CREEK INTAKE
	3.3	DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
	3.4	WATER QUALITY
	3.5	SYSTEM PRESSURES
	3.6	GROWTH POTENTIAL
	3.7	FIRE PROTECTION
4.0	WA	TER SOURCE OPTIONS REVIEW8
	4.1	REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM
	4.2	KOOTENAY LAKE
	4.3	GROUNDWATER
	4.4	Alternative Sources
	4.5	DISSOLVE THE COMMUNITY WATER SYSTEM
	4.6	EXISTING SANCA CREEK WATER SOURCE
	4.7	Preferred Source
	4.8	Do Nothing
5.0	WA	TER QUALITY TARGETS AND CURRENT HEALTH RISKS13
6.0	WA	TER TREATMENT FACILITY LOCATIONS14
	6.1	POINT OF ENTRY TREATMENT SYSTEMS



	6.2	CENTRALIZED TREATMENT SYSTEM OPTIONS	14
	6.3	WELL SOURCE OPTION	17
7.0	cos	ST COMPARISONS	19
	7.1	New Intake on Crown Land and Slow Sand Filter	19
	7.2	KEEP EXISTING INTAKE AND ADD TREATMENT VAULT ON SANCA ROAD	20
	7.3	POINT OF ENTRY TREATMENT SYSTEMS	21
	7.4	Well Source Option	23
8.0	WA	TER CONSERVATION	24
9.0	cor	NCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	25
	9.1	Assessment Summary	25
	9.2	CONCLUSIONS	26
	9.3	RECOMMENDED IMPLEMENTATION PLAN	27

# **APPENDICES**

- Appendix A Water Quality Test Results
- Appendix B RDCK Regional Water Maps
- Appendix C Local Well Information
- Appendix D Easement and Statutory Right of Way



# 1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The report provides a source assessment of the Sanca Park water system located on the eastern shores of Kootenay Lake. Given the recent events and new information that is available, the RDCK is interested in taking a step back to re-evaluate the present system and potential options for moving this system forward with a sustainable source of water that can be supplied and treated in a cost effective manner. This report was developed to take the previous information available and combine it with some new assessment information to identify a sustainable water source for the Sanca Park Water System.

A comprehensive overview of community options has been undertaken including:

- A regional water system with supply from a central source;
- Kootenay Lake source;
- Groundwater source;
- Alternative sources such as trucked water supply;
- Dissolving the community water system; and
- Utilize the existing Sanca Creek Water Source.

It was concluded that the current water source, Sanca Creek, is the preferred source. Water supplied to the community from Sanca Creek is currently not treated and this contravenes the Drinking Water Protection Act and Regulations.

Four treatment options are presented for the Sanca Creek Source:

- A new intake and treatment works on Crown Land with access via the Forestry Services Road. These treatment works would consist of basket strainers, two slow sand filtration cells, and chlorine disinfection with a concrete contact tank. This system would be operated without connection to the power grid;
- 2. Use the existing intake with treatment works at the end of Sanca Road in a below grade structure. These treatment works would consist of basket strainers, coarse cartridge filters for use during freshet only, UV disinfection, and chlorine disinfection with a pressure tank for chlorine contact time for virus and bacteria disinfection.
- 3. Point of Entry Treatment at the property line with the required appurtenances for sand and gravel control including a new intake and basket strainers as well as chlorine disinfection.
- 4. Although local well logs indicate that a well source may not be feasible to supply the community demands the RDCK requested that a well option be priced based on certain



assumptions. The RDCK should do additional investigation to confirm ground water quality in the area and the capacity of a well to supply the community if this option is pursued.

Point of Entry Treatment has not been proven to work in Sanca through pilot studies and the revised cost estimates based on recommendations from those pilot studies make the approach the most expensive of the options.

Option 1 has the lowest lifecycle cost but has a higher capital cost than Option 2 and 4. All options are significantly different in approach and we would recommend that these options be reviewed with RDCK staff, the Community and IHA to determine the preferred approach.

Estimated yearly cost per connection based on 29 connections for Option 1 is \$1,069 per connection. Estimated yearly cost per connection based on 29 connections for Option 2 is \$1,503 per connection. Estimated yearly cost per connection based on 29 connections for Option 3 is \$2,798 per connection. Estimated yearly cost per connection based on 29 connections for Option 4 is \$1,450 per connection. This includes amortization for the required borrowing over 20 years, operation and maintenance, and contributions to reserves for infrastructure renewal for the new treatment works but not the renewal of the distribution system. The costs for option four may be reduced to \$683 per connection if Interior Health agrees to defer UV treatment and chlorine contact for the well source and allows operator visits once per week. This would require confirmation that any well drilled is not under the direct influence of surface water.

It is proposed that one year of Turbidity monitoring, UV Transmittance testing and flow recording be undertaken to determine with certainty the treatment requirements and system integrity. This approach could significantly reduce the size of the required infrastructure and reduce costs. In addition the RDCK should confirm that Crown Land and/or Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure will allow works to be constructed in the proposed locations.



# 2.0 INTRODUCTION

The Sanca Park Water System is one of the smallest water systems owned and operated by the Regional District of Central Kootenay (RDCK) with 31 accounts and 29 connections. Water is supplied to the community from Sanca Creek which is presently untreated. This mountain creek is subject to turbidity events and sand and gravel currently enters the system creating operational problems at the intake and in the distribution system. Water quality test results for 2008 and 2009 have been included in **Appendix A** for reference and show the presence of coliforms and e-coli bacteria. As a result, the system is on boil water advisory.

Urban Systems Ltd (Urban) completed a Sanca Park Water System Assessment in 2006 that investigated the existing source, water consumption and demand, distribution network, community growth, and fire protection. The 2006 report evaluated some risks and looked at treatment options for the existing source and made some recommendations for moving forward.

More recently the RDCK has examined Point of Entry (POE) treatment technology as an option for bringing the system into compliance with provincial regulations. POE systems are installed on the service connection for each customer prior to water use and can be installed at the property line or inside the house. A pilot test has been completed and a number of problems associated with this particular water system and the technology have been identified such as filter fouling and additional operational attention required for the ultraviolet treatment among others. Costs have been identified by the District to supply and install POE units as well as the operation and maintenance costs for these units. These costs were presented to the community by the RDCK and were deemed to be too expensive to make POE treatment feasible.

Currently the community water system intake and main transmission line are located on private land. There is an existing 1963 easement between property owners for maintaining and repairing the water pipelines (see **Appendix D**). These works were re-located since this easement was established and since that time discussions to acquire the land or to acquire a legal easement or Statutory Right of Way (SROW) have not progressed beyond preliminary discussions. To support these discussions a SROW plan was created (see **Appendix D**). Any proposed SROW plan and agreement would include the ability to construct and maintain any new treatment works. Any costs identified through these negotiations are an important consideration in determining the future of the water system.

Given the recent events and new information that is available, the RDCK is interested in taking a step back to re-evaluate the present system and potential options for moving this system forward with a sustainable source of water that can be supplied and treated in a cost effective manner. This report was developed to take the previous information available and combine it with some new assessment information to identify a sustainable water source for the Sanca Park Water System.



# 3.0 EXISTING SYSTEM OVERVIEW

Much work has been done in the past to review and evaluate the existing system. This section summarizes key information while avoiding reassessment of previous work. Updates have been provided where new data has become available.

# 3.1 Water License and Demand

The Licenses to withdraw water from Sanca Creek on the provincial record are as follows:

RDCK #C053792 for 29,038.15 m<sup>3</sup>/yr. Stanley M & Theresa E Nowek #C032477 for 2.273 m3/d.

The 1979 Mecman report states that the Water Rights Branch estimate of low flow in Sanca Creek is 140 l/s. The approximate watershed area is 9,000 hectares (90 km<sup>2</sup>), yielding a low flow runoff of approximately 1.6 L/s per km<sup>2</sup>.

The system has never been metered, and there is no record of daily or annual water consumption. The current system services 29 connections (31 accounts), but only 5 to 10 of those have residents on a year-round basis. Lots are relatively large with only one lot larger than 2.5 acres.

The BC Design Guidelines for Rural Residential Community Water Systems (2004) can be used to estimate water demands. The 2006 Urban Systems report estimated the maximum daily demand (MDD) per single family residential unit as 5,200 l/d. This is made up of allowances for indoor use, system and residential water loss allowances and irrigation demands. With 29 single-family residential connections @ 5,200 L/d = 150,800 L/d (1.75 l/s).

Peak instantaneous rates for small communities can be as high as 3 times the MDD, or, in this case, approximately 5.24 L/s.

In 2006 Urban Systems approximated the yearly consumption as 15,390 cubic meters including consumption from the Elks Resort which is no longer on the system. Subtracting out the Elks Resort we have an estimated consumption that is less than half the licensed quantity.

The guidelines used above make significant allowances for overuse and leakage. It is strongly recommend that one year of metered data be collected on the system so that leakage can be assessed, as well as actual use patterns during the winter and summer.



Metered data may significantly reduce the size of the infrastructure and allow the RDCK to repair leaks prior to designing and constructing costly water treatment infrastructure.

### 3.2 Sanca Creek Intake

The creek intake was re-constructed in 1980. It utilizes an infiltration gallery as shown on **Figures 3.2a** and **3.2b**.

Three perforated pipes are extended to the centre of the creek channel, while four others are constructed in a filter bed beside the channel. All collector pipes are bedded in engineered drain rock material as shown on **Figure 3.2b.** A 25mm nipple is provided on the header to enable connection of high pressure air to backflush any sediment accumulations. In 2010 the RDCK cleaned the intake infiltration gallery.

### 3.3 Distribution Network

The supply and distribution network was completely rebuilt in 1980. It consists of a 150mm diameter supply main which comes across Highway 3A in a culvert casing. At that point it reduces to 100mm diameter and runs down Road B (connects the highway to Park Road) and Road C (Park Road) in the community. A 50mm diameter line is on Road A (Sanca Road) and a 50mm diameter service supplies the two properties North of the new development on the lands previously used for the Elks Resort.

The network has two 100mm diameter standpipes and a 50mm diameter flushout at the south end of Park Road. The system is depicted on **Figure 3.2a.** The RDCK has also recently performed maintenance on these standpipes.

A shed in the middle of Park Road houses 500 ft. (150m) of fire hose and is available to volunteers in case of fire. There is no fire-fighting truck in the area, and the system is not formally recognized as providing fire protection.





#500 - 1708 DOLPHIN AVENUE KELOWNA, BC, CANADA V1Y 9S4 Tel. 250.762.2517 Fax. 250.763.5266 www.urban-systems.com

DRAWING COURTESY OF MECMAN ENGINEERING Ltd.

# SANCA PARK WATER STUDY







#500 - 1708 DOLPHIN AVENUE KELOWNA, BC, CANADA V1Y 9S4 Tel. 250.762.2517 Fax. 250.763.5266 www.urban-systems.com DRAWING COURTESY OF MECMAN ENGINEERING Ltd.

# SANCA PARK WATER STUDY

	Clier	nt/Project
	REGIONAL D	DISTRICT
Scale	Date	Figure
N.T.S.	February 2013	3.2b
1045.0026.01		Title
SANCA EXISTING IN	- PARK WATER NFILTRATION GA	<b>STUDY</b>

DETAIL 4

### 3.4 Water Quality

Water is supplied to the community from Sanca Creek which is presently untreated. This mountain creek is subject to turbidity events and sand and gravel currently enters the system creating operational problems at the intake and in the distribution system. Water quality test results for 2008 and 2009 have been included in **Appendix A** for reference and show the presence of coliforms and e-coli bacteria. As a result, the system is on boil water advisory.

While this system is generally reported to have low turbidity there has not been any testing during freshet. Based on this anecdotal information this mountain creek may be similar to water quality results obtained on the Ymir system. Ymir's water quality is also reported to be excellent and testing showed that turbidity does rise above 1 ntu during freshet but typically does not go above 3 ntu.

# 3.5 System Pressures

The relative elevations at the intake and the subdivision produce the following static and dynamic pressures:

	Static (psi)	Dynamic at MDD (psi)
On Sanca Road	47	45
On Park Road	60	57

### 3.6 Growth Potential

The system designed in 1979 (by Mecman Engineering & Testing Ltd.) was based on the option referred to as Supply System "A".

Supply System "A" included relocating the inlet to a higher elevation (as an infiltration gallery), chlorination, 100mm diameter supply and distribution piping and two standpipes. It was intended to service 27 lots and the Elks Club facility.

The chlorination system was not installed, but the supply pipe was upsized to 150mm diameter.

The Mecman report also provided a Supply System "B", which included a higher intake location, an 81,000 Litre storage reservoir for fire storage, 150mm diameter distribution piping and 2 fire hydrants.



The intent of System "B" was to provide firefighting capacity and potentially service 30 to 60 lots on the east side of Highway 3A (Lot 913), owned by the Wynndel Box and Lumber Company. The report recommended that the extra cost of adopting System "B" over System "A" be assessed to Wynndel Box and Lumber Company if there were a desire to participate in the upgrade.

Recent dialogue with Wynndel Box and Lumber Company indicated that they may still be interested in a 2 to 12 lot subdivision. Discussions regarding this possible subdivision have been ongoing since the late 1970's and there have been no firm commitments made to the RDCK.

There is capacity to expand the system from a water supply perspective and expansion would reduce the cost per connection paid for upgrades and O&M. However without a firm commitment the additional costs for a larger system without the user base to support it would be too onerous for the community to take on. It should be noted that expansion of the treatment works at a later date could be accommodated at an increased cost. In addition, any cost associated with specifically servicing new development can be borne 100% by the property owners including any pumping systems, water storage, and transmission lines. While Sanca currently does not have a system extension fee other RDCK systems have an extension fee of \$10,000 per service. The same can be applied in Sanca.

# 3.7 Fire Protection

The community does not have any formalized fire protection system. There are two 100mm diameter standpipes and one 50mm diameter standpipe. There is also 500 feet (150m) of 50mm diameter fire hose located in a shed halfway down Road C for the use of residents in case of fire.

These facilities do not conform to any formal firefighting standard, nor is there any firefighting storage in the system. It is not known if any of the residents have any training in firefighting. The utility is therefore deemed as <u>not</u> providing fire protection and the RDCK has confirmed that fire protection was not to be included as part of this study.

Storage is not required if there is no formal fire protection status except as required for the treatment system to buffer peak hour demands and to meet log removal credits for chlorine contact time.



# 4.0 WATER SOURCE OPTIONS REVIEW

This water system has been reviewing upgrade options since 1979 and while some work has been done on the system over the years, water treatment has not been implemented in the community. To support the community in the review process it is desirable to take a broad brush approach to reviewing possible water sources to ensure that this report captures all potential options for review. While some of these options may not be appealing for various reasons, consolidating the options in one place allows for a comprehensive review process.

# 4.1 Regional Water System

The Sanca Water System is located in Area A of the RDCK which has almost 60 small water systems. Many of these are located on the east shore of Kootenay Lake (please see **Appendix B** RDCK Regional Water Maps Page 1 Water Systems for a detailed overview of systems within the RDCK). Based on the beauty of the surrounding area it would not be unexpected to continue to see development on the east shore of Kootenay Lake. It is recognized in BC that small water systems will be challenged to address water quality issues and to treat their water to the new guidelines and standards. Contemplating individual treatment and storage facilities for all the existing small water systems in Area A and the potential for new systems to support development prompts one to question if a regional approach might be more affordable.

**Appendix B** identifies several issues that should be considered in reviewing a regional system. Page 2 indicates that there are existing systems in the area that are requesting RDCK assistance: Wynndel Irrigation District and Armstrong Bay Water System. There may be others that would be willing participants in a regional approach if it could be demonstrated that the costs were more affordable than remaining independent.

Many of the existing small water systems on the east shore have source water that is dependent on mountain streams. **Appendix B** also has mapping that shows some potential risk items that should be considered. Snow Pack is showing a 10 to 24% decline on that side of the lake (page 5 **Appendix B**) which could impact source waters in addition some systems may be at risk of geological hazards (page 3 of **Appendix B**). A well designed regional system could go a long way to mitigating some of these risks.

The RDCK did a study in May of 2008 called the Arrow Creek Water Treatment and Supply System. This report indicates that there is a surplus of high quality treated water available for other communities if piping infrastructure was put in place. One section of the report examines an option to supply water throughout the Creston Valley. Given that water from Arrow Creek is supplied to the north side of the Town of Creston the same principles could be applied to piping water north along the east shore of Kootenay Lake.

This would allow water treatment operations to be provided at one central location and a greater number of users to support the service.

For Sanca service from Creston would not be a possibility unless all the water systems between Creston and Sanca (as well as others north of Sanca) agreed to be part of the regional approach and agree to support the pipeline as it would require about 35 kilometers of pipe. For example there would be approximately 8 kilometers of pipe to get service to Wynndel and so on down the lake. A conservative estimate for 200 mm watermain in the Kootenays is estimated at \$180 per meter as an all in unit price. It is also important to note that without other users on such a long pipeline, water would become stagnant due to the low winter demands in Sanca.

The other challenge is bringing all parties together and creating an agreeable approach in a reasonable time frame. In addition, communities would likely need to adopt a long term approach and recognize that the lifespan of a PVC pipeline that is installed properly could be greater than 100 years whereas water treatment facilities typically need renewal on much shorter timescales adding unnecessary costs to small community systems.

There may be other centralized regional approaches to providing service but these options are beyond the scope of this report, as they are much more varied and complex. Other communities have adopted the regional long term view and have been successful at securing funding for such an approach.

# 4.2 Kootenay Lake

Sanca is adjacent to Kootenay Lake and therefore it is difficult to ignore this large body of water as a potential water source. A significant amount of work has been done to study the lake water quality and in general the water quality is good. BC Hydro has reported that the turbidity in the lake has declined since the dams have been installed. However it is a surface water source and in 2010 the Ministry of Environment released the Kootenay Lake Nutrient Restoration Program, Year 16 (North Arm) and Year 4 (South Arm) (2007) Report which states:

In the period 1997-2007, average turbidity values ranged from 0.29-0.99 NTU in the North Arm and 0.25-1.80 NTU in the South Arm (Table 3.4). The increase in turbidity in the spring of 1997 could be attributed to higher discharge from the Kootenay River.... The increase in turbidity during the spring months in the South Arm in 2006 and 2007 could be attributed to additional discharge entering the lake resulting from a change in Libby Dam operations.



Sanca is located in the South Arm and based on this report it would seem that during portions of the year turbidity could be expected to be above 1 NTU. Interior Health notes the following regarding turbidity under their 4-3-2-1-0 Drinking Water Objective:

The Guidelines for Canadian Drinking Water Quality currently specify that the filtered treated water turbidity should have a target of less than 0.1 NTU at all times. Specific filtration technologies may have target turbidity ranges from 0.1 to 1.0 NTU. Exemptions for filtration may be considered for those systems that use two disinfectants plus maintain chlorine residual in the distribution system and can demonstrate compliance with the GCDWQ for exemption for filtration.

If the community chooses to make use of Kootenay Lake instead of their current gravity creek source they would still need to filter the water and in addition they would need to pump the water to a new storage reservoir. New land would also need to be acquired to site the new treatment works. Based on the need for filtration, pumping and new land acquisition this option is not likely to be cost effective for the community unless the current source were determined not to be a sustainable source over the long term.

# 4.3 Groundwater

Communities have often investigated groundwater as a potential source when filtration is required for their surface water source. This helps keep treatment costs low or in some cases, if the well is in a confined aquifer with good water quality, to eliminate the need for treatment all together. Based on a review of the area the following is noted:

- There are no aquifers mapped in the area (see Appendix B page 9);
- The only viable location to drill a well to get the volumes needed in this area is near the lake;
- Any well drilled would likely be hydraulically connected to the lake and may be considered groundwater under the direct influence of surface water (GUDI);
- A GUDI source will still require ultra violet and chlorine disinfection;
- If there are any other water quality issues with the well the water may require additional treatment such as filtration and chemical addition; and
- Well logs in the area show a range of production capacities from 2.5 USgpm to 30 USgpm or 0.16 l/s to 1.89 l/s (see Appendix C for local well information).

The 1979 Mecman report states that the Water Rights Branch estimate of low flow in Sanca Creek is 140 l/s demonstrating that there is significantly higher flow available in Sanca Creek than would be available through groundwater pumping in the area. The 2006 Urban report calculated the MDD as 207,500 l/d or 2.4 l/s and this report revised that number based on the current situation to 1.75 l/s. Instantaneous rates for small communities can be as high as 3 times the MDD, or, in this case, approximately 5.25 L/s.



Based on this, if a well were used it would still require treatment, it would require pumping to an elevated storage reservoir, and likely multiple wells would be needed to meet the demand as well as significant storage volumes. The only benefit would be the possibility of eliminating the need for filtration. However, this would be offset by the cost of drilling multiple wells to meet the demand, increased storage, and does not eliminate the risk of other treatment sometimes associated with ground water. In addition operational costs would increase due to pumping water. Based on this information this would not likely be a cost effective option for the community.

Individual wells could be drilled, however each house in the community is currently disposing of wastewater using septic fields. Interior Health requires each parcel to be a minimum size of 2.5 acres to allow a well and septic field on the same lot. All but one lot in this community are smaller than this minimum size restriction. Therefore, individual wells would not be an option with an onsite septic system.

The RDCK has requested that a cost estimate be developed based on the assumption that a single well with sufficient capacity could be drilled near Sanca Creek at the end of Sanca Park Road and the water quality would be good. Under this option pressure tanks would be used instead of a storage reservoir and standby power would be provided to allow water supply during power outages. The RDCK also believes they may initially be able to get agreement from Interior Health to install a treatment system that uses only chlorine for the proposed well source.

### 4.4 Alternative Sources

In drought stricken places or areas were water is not available, rainwater harvesting has been employed and or trucking in water to each individual house. While there are homes that truck in water in Alberta there do not appear to be any trucked drinking water operations in BC nor would this be a cost effective alternative for this community. The same goes for rainwater harvesting. The community demands are much too high for this to be a viable alternative. Also there do not appear to be any systems like this that have been approved. Rainwater harvesting has been used in communities in BC to supplement outdoor irrigation but not for drinking water.

# 4.5 Dissolve the Community Water System

There do not appear to have been any circumstances in the Province where a water system owned and operated by a Regional District was permitted to be dissolved. The current regulations are set up to allow improvement districts or community water systems to be dissolved and assets and ownership transferred to a local government. It is unlikely that the RDCK could divest themselves from this system under the current provincial governance structure.



### 4.6 Existing Sanca Creek Water Source

Sanca Creek, based on the limited information available, has ample water available to supply the community. The water license held by the RDCK also has ample water to supply the community and even expand it to more than twice the current size if it was desired. Water supply is not the issue. If the community were contemplating expansion consideration should be given to climate change scenarios such as declining snow pack and pine beetle infestation and how this may impact the watershed, water supply and water quality.

Water is fed by gravity to the community and pressures within the community meet the minimum standard of 35 psi. However, pressures above Highway 3A do not meet the minimum standard and therefore any development at Highway 3A or above would require a booster pump station or would require moving the intake upstream.

The intake infrastructure and pipeline for this source is located on private property. There is an existing easement over the area to operate and maintain the works. Discussions have taken place over the years regarding securing a statutory right of way that would formalize any agreement for operation, maintenance and installation of the existing and any proposed works. At this time this has not been completed.

# 4.7 Preferred Source

Based on the options reviewed Sanca Creek remains the preferred source and the options for upgrades should be based on that source. Please note that any upgrades on Lot 913 will likely require the approval of Wynndel Box.

# 4.8 Do Nothing

The RDCK is concerned about drinking water quality and the ongoing boil water advisory and the liability associated with not meeting current regulations. They faced similar challenges with respect to treatment upgrades in South Slocan. South Slocan was presented with a detailed proposal to move forward that included a summary of costs, as well as user fees and taxes to support the upgrades. The community voted no to the proposal. Subsequently the Interior Health Authority ordered the RDCK to move forward via the Drinking Water Protection Act and the upgrades were implemented and the necessary fees and taxes levied to support the required upgrades. Under this scenario a community looses the flexibility on how to move forward.

It is noteworthy that Interior Health will work with communities to establish longer term plans to bringing the system up to standards prior to taking similar action as in South Slocan.

# 5.0 WATER QUALITY TARGETS AND CURRENT HEALTH RISKS

The BC DWPA (Drinking Water Protection Act) and the accompanying Regulations provide the required water quality parameters for reduced risks to public health. Interior Health has declared a more comprehensive set of targeted constituents. These are referred to as the 4-3-2-1-0 Drinking Water Objective. Water suppliers will be required to provide long term plans to reach the goals of:

- 4 log inactivation of viruses
- 3 log removal or inactivation of Giardia Lamblia and Cryptosporidium
- 2 refers to two treatment processes for all surface drinking water systems
- 1 for less than 1 NTU of turbidity with a target of 0.1 NTU
- 0 total and fecal coliforms and E. Coli

Interior Health has indicated that they would consider phased plans to meet the 4-3-2-1-0 treatment objective.

An Order-in-Council (No. 879, approved and ordered on December 8, 2005) repeals Section 1 of the Drinking Water Regulation, BC Reg. 200/2003 and replaces it with provisions for "small" systems. Small systems are defined as those that serve up to 500 individuals during any 24 hour period.

Interior Health objectives for water quality apply equally to "small" water systems. The Order-in-Council does allow provisions for achievement of "potable" water with in-house Point-of-Entry or Point-of-Use treatment systems.

The system currently has minimal sand and gravel around the infiltration gallery intake. There is no other protection against viruses, bacteria, and protozoan cysts such as Giardia or Cryptosporidium.



# 6.0 WATER TREATMENT FACILITY LOCATIONS

In an effort to narrow down the possible scenarios, treatment options are examined first based on suitable locations for a treatment facility using the preferred source Sanca Creek.

### 6.1 **Point of Entry Treatment Systems**

The RDCK has done several studies and pilot trials over the years on the use of point of entry (POE) treatment systems. Sanca had a system pilot tested in the community. Sand and gravel, high water demands, water temperature, power surges, brownouts and outages created problems with the operation of this system. This is all documented in the RDCK report Sanca Park Water System of July 23, 2009.

The report does go on to state that:

- Consistent (raw) water quality is required for POE systems;
- Passive pressure membrane filters that require minimal power and provide certified log credits for removals... would reduce operational issues;
- Splitting raw water supply from potable water supply would prove beneficial and extend the life span of POE equipment;
- Access to equipment 24/7 is important and therefore must be contained in a vault at the property line;
- It will likely be necessary to inject chlorine at source in order to maintain the integrity of the distribution system and as well provide a second barrier for disinfection. The chlorine could then be removed using a carbon block filter at the property line.

The POE cost estimates presented in 2009 were based on the assumption that a well could be drilled to improve water quality making the operation of the POE systems less problematic. A desk top review of the area indicates that a single well source is not capable of supplying enough water for the community. Therefore, if the existing intake were continued to be used instead of a well source, this would require a headworks facility to create a consistent raw water quality prior to treatment with POE systems.

# 6.2 Centralized Treatment System Options

Two options are presented for consideration. The first involves a new intake structure on Crown Land above lot 913 and the second involves keeping the existing intake. Any upgrades on Lot 913 will likely require the approval of Wynndel Box.



# 6.2.1 New Intake Crown Land

There is an existing Forestry Services Road over Lot 913 providing access to the Crown Land above 913. The RDCK may be able to acquire land from the Crown above lot 913 at little or no cost. Under this scenario the RDCK would install a new intake further upstream and build the necessary treatment works. Access to the facility would be via the existing forestry services road. The existing intake would be retained for emergency use or plant bypass requirements. See **Figure 6.2.1**.



Figure 6.2.1

Getting power to the site would be problematic and costly therefore the following is proposed:

- New diversion structure designed to minimize sand and gravel intrusion
- Manual double basket strainer for sand and gravel removal;
- 2 celled slow sand filter operated by gravity;
- Accu-Tab gravity operated chlorination system;
- Chlorine contract chamber;
- Turbine flowmeter or battery powered magnetic flow meter; and
- Power generation with a small water turbine with battery backup to power turbidity and chlorine residual monitoring with emergency notification over a cellular network.

The entire system would operate by gravity without the need for power from the grid. The proposed process would only need a small building to house the chlorination equipment and the sand filter would be buried for insulation. Access would be provided on one side with marine doors.

The treatment train is designed to get the required log credits for the pathogens noted in **Section 5.0**.



# 6.2.2 Existing Intake and Treatment Vault

If the RDCK is unable to secure a statutory right of way or permission to make upgrades on Lot 913, another option would be to install a below grade treatment vault at the end of Sanca Road (see **Figure 6.2.2**).



Figure 6.2.2

There is power available at this location and this area is approximately 30 meters by 30 meters. Under this scenario the following is proposed:

- Below grade treatment vault with stairwell access to eliminate the need for confined space entry;
- The stairwell will need an above grade building cover approximately 1.7 meters by 5.6 meters;
- Single phase power service and telephone line;
- Approximately 160 meters of raw water line;
- Approximately 160 meters of treated water line;
- Manual double basket strainer for sand and gravel removal;
- 50 micron and 10 micron cartridge filters in series to be used only during freshet when Turbidity is above 1 ntu to keep operational costs low;
- UV reactor;
- Chlorine disinfection using Sodium Hypochlorite with in line pressure vessel contact tank; and
- On line SCADA system to measure flows, turbidity, and residual chlorine.

The treatment train is designed to get the required log credits for the pathogens noted in Section 5.0. Note the inline pressure vessel would be designed to kill viruses and



bacteria and not protozoa. Typical 4-log (99.99%) inactivation for virus and bacteria is achieved at CT values of 4 to 8. This is dependent on a number of factors which would be reviewed during design.

# 6.3 Well Source Option

The RDCK has requested that a well source option be investigated located at the end of Sanca Park Road (see **Figure 6.3**). Based on the well log review a single well may not be able sustain the community water demands and there is no well water quality data to suggest that the water quality will be good.



Figure 6.3

We have assumed that a single well could supply the community and that the water quality will be good. This will need to be confirmed by the RDCK by doing some additional investigation for the existing wells in the area. Under this scenario the following is proposed:

- Single well;
- Below grade treatment vault with stairwell access to eliminate the need for confined space entry;
- The stairwell will need an above grade building cover approximately 1.7 meters by 5.6 meters;
- Single phase power service and telephone line;
- UV reactor;





- Chlorine disinfection using Sodium Hypochlorite with in line pressure vessel contact tank;
- Bladder tanks to sustain system pressure to cycle the well pump;
- Backup power; and
- On line SCADA system to measure flows, turbidity, and residual chlorine.

The treatment train is designed to get the required log credits for the pathogens noted in **Section 5.0**. Note the inline pressure vessel would be designed to kill viruses and bacteria and not protozoa. Typical 4-log (99.99%) inactivation for virus and bacteria is achieved at CT values of 4 to 8. This is dependent on a number of factors which would be reviewed during design.



# 7.0 COST COMPARISONS

Class D Cost estimates have been provided for a new intake on Crown Land with associated treatment works, keeping the existing intake with a new treatment vault on Sanca Road, and Point of Entry Treatment. A regional approach to water treatment has not been reviewed due to the wide array of possible options. District Lot 17 might be available for a new treatment plant however this would require about 900 meters of new raw water pipe and 900 meters of new treated water pipe making the approach less cost effective than the treatment vault on Sanca Road.

# 7.1 New Intake on Crown Land and Slow Sand Filter

The filter size is based on a:

- hydraulic loading rate of 0.15 m/hr (3.6 m/day),
- two cell design to allow cleaning,
- MDD of 1.75 l/s or 151 m<sup>3</sup>/d,
- Peak hour is buffered by some additional capacity in the chlorine contact tank and pipeline,
- Headwater depth of 1 meter above filter sand,
- Initial filter bed depth of 0.9 m,
- Minimum filter bed depth of 0.5 m,
- Gravel bed depth of 0.5 meters, and
- Freeboard of 0.6 meters.

The required filter surface area is approximately 21 m<sup>2</sup> per cell.

This option assumes that the RDCK will be approved to build the treatment works on Crown Land at no cost to the District. It also assumes that there will be cell coverage at the location for alarm dial out. Grid power is not required for this treatment option. The capital costs and O&M costs are summarized below. Please note that it is highly recommended that the RDCK perform at least one year of water quality testing and metering on the system to confirm that the raw water quality meets the required parameters for slow sand filtration. Metering the system will result in a better understanding of water demands and leakage and could lead to downsizing treatment infrastructure with reduced costs.



### **Capital Cost**

Item	Cost	
Clearing, site prep and access	\$	10,000
New diversion structure and piping	\$	35,000
Manual double basket strainers and vault	\$	10,000
Slow sand filters (2 cells)	\$	126,000
Accu-Tab chlorination system and enclosure	\$	15,000
Chlorine contact chamber	\$	18,000
Flow meter	\$	5,000
Chlorine and turbidity monitoring	\$	5,000
Sub Total	\$	224,000
Contingency Class D Cost Estimate (35%)	\$	78,400
Sub Total	\$	302,400
Engineering (15%)	\$	45,360
Reserves	\$	(56,000)
Gas Tax Funds	\$	(40,000)
Total	\$	251,760

Capital Amortization Costs based on 20 years at 4% MFA (per year per connection) \$ 639

### O&M Cost

Item	Cos	t
Power (no grid power in this option)	NA	
Telephone (cell \$50/month)	\$	600
Chemicals and incidentals	\$	1,500
Filters (sand replacement fund per year)	\$	1,000
*Operator maintenance \$50 per hour 1 time per week 2 hours per day	\$	5,200
Snow clearing forestry service road	\$	1,200
Infrastructure renewal fund	\$	2,957
Total per year	\$	12,457
*Note: Suggested requirement by RDCK for this type of system.		
O&M cost per connection per year (29 connections)	\$	429.54
Total Cost Per Year Per Connection	\$	1,068.54

# 7.2 Keep Existing Intake and Add Treatment Vault on Sanca Road

This option assumes that the RDCK will be approved to build the treatment works at the end of Sanca Road. It also assumes that single phase power and telephone are available adjacent to the site. The capital costs and O&M costs are summarized below. Please note that it is highly recommended that the RDCK perform at least one year of water quality testing and metering on the system to confirm that the raw water quality meets the required parameters for the proposed treatment process. This option assumes that turbidity in the water will be similar to water quality in Ymir. Metering the system will

result in a better understanding of water demands and leakage and could lead to downsizing treatment infrastructure with reduced costs.

### **Capital Cost**

Item	Cos	t
Clearing, site prep and access	\$	5,000
Below grade treatment vault with stairwell access	\$	42,000
Single phase power service and telephone line	\$	10,000
160 meters of 200 mm raw water line	\$	28,800
160 meters of 200 mm treated water line	\$	28,800
Manual double basket strainers	\$	5,000
50 micron and 10 micron cartridge filters	\$	10,000
UV reactor and appurtenances	\$	35,000
Chlorine disinfection with in line pressure vessel contact tank	\$	40,000
On line SCADA system to measure flows, turbidity, and residual chlorine.	\$	10,000
Sub Total	\$	214,600
Contingency Class D Cost Estimate (35%)	\$	75,110
Sub Total	\$	289,710
Engineering (15%)	\$	43,457
Reserves	\$	(56,000)
Gas Tax Funds	\$	(40,000)
Total	\$	237,167

# Capital Amortization Costs based on 20 years at 4% MFA (per year per connection)

### O&M Cost

Item	Cos	st
Power (heat, light, and UV - average \$200/month)	\$	2,400
Telephone (landline \$50 per month)	\$	600
Chemicals and incidentals	\$	1,500
Cartridge Filters (freshet only)	\$	800
UV Bulbs	\$	800
Operator maintenance \$50 per hour 3 times per week 2 hours per day	\$	15,600
Infrastructure renewal fund	\$	4,429
Total per year	\$	26,129
O&M cost per connection per year (29 connections)	\$	901.01
Total Cost Per Year Per Connection	\$	1,503.01

# 7.3 Point of Entry Treatment Systems

We have reviewed the costs in the RDCK report and note the following:

 Only 16 vaults have been allowed and it is assumed that this is based on properties sharing treatment vaults;



\$

602

- Solar power cost seems low to run each system and there may be insufficient solar power to run the system without proper battery backup;
- A well system is not feasible to feed the POE systems and therefore a headworks system would be needed to remove sand and gravel;
- Constructing new works in the existing easement has not been authorized and therefore new works would be required on Crown Land with a new intake; and
- The estimate is a Class D Cost Estimate and should have a contingency of 35%

The RDCK original Estimate was \$492,500 for the system outlined in the report July 23, 2009 report. We have updated the capital costs and O&M costs using the POE costs provided in the RDCK report and the revised contingency.

Item	Cost	:
Clearing and site access new intake	\$	10,000
New Intake	\$	35,000
Manual double basket strainers and vault	\$	10,000
Accu-Tab chlorination system and enclosure	\$	15,000
Chlorine contract chamber	\$	18,000
POE vaults at property line (16)	\$	73,600
Split Irrigation to reduce flow to POE	\$	14,500
POE Units	\$	145,000
Solar power and battery backup	\$	43,500
Sub Total	\$	364,600
Contingency Class D Cost Estimate (35%)	\$	127,610
Sub Total	\$	492,210
Engineering (15%)	\$	73,832
Reserves	\$	(56,000)
Gas Tax Funds	\$	(40,000)
Total	\$	470,042

### **Capital Cost**

Capital Amortization Costs based on 20 years at 4% MFA (per year per connection) \$ 1,193

### O&M Cost

Item	Cos	t
Power (not connected to grid power)	NA	
Telephone (no alarm dial out)	NA	
Chemicals and incidentals	\$	1,500
Operator maintenance average 2 hours per month per unit \$50 per hour	\$	34,800
Infrastructure renewal fund	\$	10,245
Total per year	\$	46,545
O&M cost per connection per year (29 connections)	\$	1,605.00
Total Cost Per Year Per Connection	\$	2,798.00



# 7.4 Well Source Option

The RDCK requested that we price the well source option assuming that a single well could be drilled to accommodate the required flows and assuming the water quality would be good. While the cost table below includes the provision for UV treatment and a chlorine contact tank, there may be opportunities to work with Interior Health to monitor the water quality to determine if UV treatment is required and if a chlorine contact chamber is required. Removing these costs and reducing site visits to once per week reduces the total cost per connection to \$683 per connection.

### **Capital Cost**

Item	Cos	t
Clearing, site prep and access	\$	5,000
Well drilling, completion, testing, pad and casing	\$	25,000
Well pump	\$	10,000
Below grade treatment vault with stairwell access	\$	42,000
Single phase power service and telephone line	\$	10,000
UV reactor and appurtenances	\$	35,000
Chlorine disinfection with in line pressure vessel contact tank	\$	40,000
Bladder pressure tanks	\$	10,000
On line SCADA system to measure flows, turbidity, and residual chlorine.	\$	10,000
Backup power	\$	15,000
Sub Total	\$	202,000
Contingency Class D Cost Estimate (35%)	\$	70,700
Sub Total	\$	272,700
Engineering (15%)	\$	40,905
Reserves	\$	(56,000)
Gas Tax Funds	\$	(40,000)
Total	\$	217,605

Capital Amortization Costs based on 20 years at 4% MFA (per year per connection)

O&M Cost

ltem	Cos	st
Power (heat, light, UV and pumping )	\$	2,700
Telephone (landline \$50 per month)	\$	600
Chemicals and incidentals	\$	1,500
UV Bulbs	\$	800
Operator maintenance \$50 per hour 3 times per week 2 hours per day	\$	15,600
Infrastructure renewal fund	\$	4,853
Total per year	\$	26,053
O&M cost per connection per year (29 connections)	\$	898.39
Total Cost Per Year Per Connection	\$	1,450.39



\$

552

# 8.0 WATER CONSERVATION

Serious consideration should be given to water conservation in this community as a green approach to the proposed upgrades. Reducing the volume of water used in the community through the use of water meters, a ban on irrigation with potable water, roof leader and rainwater capture and storage for irrigation, or alternative irrigation supply may result in significant capital and O&M cost reductions. A green approach may also make the project eligible for grants.



# 9.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

# 9.1 Assessment Summary

### 9.1.1 Source Water

Sanca Creek is a reliable source of water for this community and the predicted watershed yield surpasses the current consumption rate in moderate drought conditions. It is the preferred source for this community.

The water quality is good and while there are activities in the watershed such as logging and recreation, the risk of source contamination is relatively low.

Although long-term sampling and turbidity monitoring has not been done it is expected that turbidity will exceed 1 ntu during freshet and therefore some form of filtration is required.

# 9.1.2 Infrastructure

The supply and delivery network was constructed in 1980, using PVC pipe. If this was constructed properly with pipe bedding, the pipe should have a lifespan of 100 years if properly maintained. Routine flushing, cleaning and valve exercising should be undertaken on a regular and consistent basis; risk of service loss is low. Leakage has not been assessed and cannot be determined without centralized flow recording.

The existing infiltration gallery system operates competently, but will require regular back flushing to prevent clogging with sand and gravel.

The system is not intended to provide formal fire protection. Conversion to a fire protection system would require significant changes to pipe sizes, hydrants and storage. This is not envisioned at this time.

# 9.1.3 Microbial Risks

Microbes and protozoan cysts are endemic in BC Interior surface waters and adequate barriers for inactivation should be provided, as well as for viruses and bacteria.



# 9.1.4 Operation and Maintenance

The system is currently visited monthly by Erickson system operators. A local qualified operator is preferred to reduce travel time and to support emergency call outs. Once the new system is on line additional operator attention will be required.

# 9.1.5 Financing

The current user fee of \$520 per connection plus a \$50 parcel tax does not provide sufficient revenue to properly operate and maintain the utility. User fees need to be increased to cover the costs of a proper operating protocol and to allow for the addition of a treatment system. It is our understanding that user fees are expected to increase again in 2013 by 20%.

# 9.1.6 Lowest Cost Treatment Approach

The RDCK has noted that the New Intake Option will likely need only one visit per week. This approach makes this system the lowest cost option at \$1,069 per connection. If the well source is considered further additional investigation is required as well as discussions with Interior Health on treatment requirements.

Additional water quality data and metering of the system is required to properly size infrastructure and to confirm treatment requirements. A better understanding of these parameters could reduce costs.

# 9.2 Conclusions

The Sanca Park system is in reasonably good condition and has reliable and good quality source water. It does not provide fire protection and any upgrade to fire protection would be at the choice of the residents. Fire protection infrastructure must be accompanied by a trained fire department and adequate equipment.

In terms of meeting Interior Health standards for microbial protection, the addition of treatment works is required.

Solutions are proposed that will allow the District to move forward without the need for further negotiation with the land owner of DL 913 however it is recommended that this report be reviewed with the land owner prior to moving forward with any upgrades. Additional users on the system would make the addition of treatment works more cost effective. Please note if any upgrades are required on Lot 913 they will likely require the approval of Wynndel Box.



# 9.3 Recommended Implementation Plan

The recommended implementation plan is as follows:

# 9.3.1 Year 2013 Activities

# 1. Well Investigation, Crown Land and MoTI ROW

If the RDCK wishes to pursue the well source option additional investigation work should be conducted to determine the water quality to confirm that specialized treatment is not required. Expected well capacity should be confirmed by a hydro geologist to determine if a well can meet community demands. Discussions with Interior Health should also be had to confirm if the UV and chlorine contact tank can be deferred.

The RDCK should also confirm that proposed works for each option could be constructed on Crown Land or in MoTI ROW.

# 2. Plan Ratification

Submit the report to Interior Health for review and approval. At this time the report should also be reviewed with the community and with Wynndel Box and Lumber. Wynndel Box and Lumber should be given an opportunity to be part of the upgrades given that it will be more expensive for them to add on to the system at a later date. Any additional costs for capital upgrades to support the improved pressure required for the development on DL 913 would be incurred by the Owner of that land. If the Owner was open to granting a statutory right of way for treatment works on DL 913 there could be some minor capital cost savings for the RDCK under Option 1 if a new intake was not required on Crown Land provided the hydraulic grade line was sufficient to operate the treatment works without compromising the system pressure. Pease note if any upgrades are required on Lot 913 they will likely require the approval of Wynndel Box.

# 3. Monitoring Program

Purchase and install a continuous reading turbidimeter and record turbidity for one year. Sample monthly for UV transmittance (UVT) over the same year. The turbidimeter can be installed in the home of a permanent resident. It can be moved to the treatment facility at a later date. Sample results should be correlated with raw water samples from the creek during freshet with a hand held turbidity meter. Monitoring equipment should be installed prior to freshet 2013.

Purchase and install a flowmeter on the main supply line. This will require power and an access chamber. This unit can also be relocated to the treatment facility at a later date.



During freshet perform a particle size distribution analysis for a single water sample.

# 4. Operation and Maintenance Plan

Review the operations and maintenance activities of other RDCK systems in the area and integrate Sanca Park in the network. Prepare a sampling and testing program that dovetails with sampling and testing at other utilities.

Estimated 2013 Expenditures:

Turbidimeter, UVT and Flowmeter Installation:	\$10,000
Sampling and Testing:	3,000
Total	\$13,000

# 9.3.2 Year 2014 Activities

# 1. Review Monitoring Program Data

- Confirm filtration and UV requirements with Interior Health on the basis of one year's turbidity monitoring and UVT testing.
- Establish design flows from flowmeter recordings.
- Determine if there is significant leakage from flowmeter recordings.
- Identify leaks and repair as required to reduce system demands.

# 2. Prepare Tender Ready Documents

Complete the design and update the cost estimates for the treatment facility.

# 3. Apply for Funding Assistance

Prepare and submit the appropriate application if senior government funding assistance is available.

# 9.3.3 Year 2015 Activities

# 1. Construct and commission the treatment facility





Water Quality Test Results



# Coliforms 2001-2005 Sanca Park Water System



Sampling date	Total coliforms/100 ml	e. coli/100 ml	MAC/100ml
16-Jan	1	0	0
30-Jan	0	0	0
25-Feb	0	0	0
4-Mar	N/A	N/A	0
18-Mar	0	0	0
14-Apr	23	3	0
22-Apr	3	0	0
5-May	1	1	0
21-May	8	0	0
2-Jun	0	0	0
2-Jul	0	0	0
16-Jul	0	0	0
29-Jul	4	0	0
12-Aug	0	0	0
27-Aug	16	1	0
17-Sep	0	0	0
23-Sep	2	1	0
8-Oct	12	0	0
21-Oct	6	1	0
5-Nov	1	0	0
19-Nov	0	0	0
1-Dec	10	2	0
17-Dec	0	0	0



Note: MAC (Maximum Acceptable Concentration =0 Where multiple samples are available for the same date, the higher microbiological count is reported. Both RAW and TREATED results may be shownd. Full parameter results not shown.

Sampling date	Total coliforms/100 ml	e. coli/100 ml	MAC/100ml
26-Jan	1	0	0
10-Feb	0	0	0
18-Feb	1	0	0
17-Mar	0	0	0
8-Apr	0	0	0
28-Apr	0	0	0
6-May	5	0	0
19-May	29	0	0
3-Jun	10	0	0



Note: MAC (Maximum Acceptable Concentration =0 Where multiple samples are available for the same date, the higher microbiological count is reported. Both RAW and TREATED results may be shownd. Full parameter results not shown.



**RDCK Regional Water Maps** 







<b>REGIONAL DISTRICT OF</b>
<b>CENTRAL KOOTENAY</b>

# WATER SYSTEMS

Legend • Street Addressing —— Highway Creeks Parcel Boundaries Water System (Spatial extent not defined) 0 Lake Administrative Boundary

Non-RDCK owned water system RDCK owned water system

A complete list of the 341 water systems located in the RDCK was provided by Interior Health Authority. Information about these systems included: name, owner, and address. Each system is delineated by point (no spatial extent defined) or known spatial boundary. Excluded systems from the mapping include those where the address was incomplete, inaccurate, or unknown. No spatial coordinates or boundary descriptions were provided by IHA, as such, there is no guarantee to size or spatial accuracy. The spatial extent of water systems under RDCK ownership have been mapped and are based on existing RDCK engineering drawings and first hand knowledge of the area.

# **DATA SOURCES**

Cadastral Lot - Surveyed lots/parcels of land; Sources: Crown Land Registry Services and RDCK TRIM Data - Planimetry, Unsurveyed Roads, and Contours; Source: Ministry of Water, Land and Air Protection Roads - Road centerline compiled 2003; Source: RDCK Regional District of Central Kootenay Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson, BC V1L 5R4 Phone: (250) 352-6665 Toll-Free 1-800-268-7325 (BC)

Fax: (250) 352-9300 Internet: www.rdck.bc.ca

Map Projection: UTM Zone 11 Map Datum: NAD83 This map was plotted on: 08/25/2008

Note: See index maps for detailed area information.





![](_page_40_Picture_1.jpeg)

# WATER SYSTEMS and HAZARD AREAS

![](_page_40_Figure_3.jpeg)

**DATA SOURCES** 

Note: See index maps for detailed area information.

![](_page_41_Figure_0.jpeg)

![](_page_41_Figure_1.jpeg)

Legend

**3rd Order Watershed** 

Major Watershed

**Community Watershed** 

Administrative Boundary

# WATERSHED BOUNDARIES

The watershed boundaries delineate the location of watersheds that supply communities with domestic water. Since passage of the Forest Practices Code of British Columbia Act, community watershed designations fall under the authority of the Ministry of Forests and the Ministry of Water, Land and Air Protection (as of June 2005, Ministry of Environment).

The definition of a community watershed given in Bill 18-1995, Forest Practices Code of B.C. Amendment Act (June 1995) which amends section 41(8) of Bill 40, is as follows: the drainage area above the most down stream point of diversion on a stream for a water use that is for human consumption and that is licensed under the Water Act for: (i) a waterworks purpose, or (ii) a domestic purpose if the license is held by or is subject to the control of a water users community incorporated under the Water Act if the drainage area is not more than 500 km2 and the water license was issued before June 15, 1995.

Major watershed boundary lines are designated by the Ministry of Environment, Land and Parks, Fisheries Branch.

# Definition of a Third Order Watershed

The streams occupying a drainage basin form a hierarchical network of channels that, in humid areas, hold increasingly larger volumes of water as you move toward the mouth of the basin. A stream's order is its rank, or relative position, within the network. A first-order stream is a channel with no tributaries - that is, a channel at its upper reaches and near its source. A second-order stream is a channel fed by at least two first-order tributaries. The joining of two-second order streams forms a third-order stream. Stream ranking continues in this manner until the highest-ordered channel is reached. First and second-order streams are located in the headwater areas of watersheds and typically convey small volumes of water. These lower-order streams are vulnerable to pollution because they are unable to dilute contaminants, assimilate much organic waste, or remove sediments deposited on channel bottoms. - Source: "CGIS AT TOWSON UNIVERSITY," Retrieved July 17 2008, from http://chesapeake.towson.edu/landscape/impervious/all\_watersheds.asp

# **DATA SOURCES**

BC Major Watersheds- Major Watersheds of BC; Source: Base mapping and Geomatics Services Branch, ILMB
Third-Order and Greater Watersheds - spatial view of BC Watershed Atlas 50K; Source: Ecosystems Branch, Ministry of Environment

![](_page_41_Picture_10.jpeg)

Regional District of Central Kootenay Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson, BC V1L 5R4 Phone: (250) 352-6665 Toll-Free 1-800-268-7325 (BC) Fax: (250) 352-9300 Internet: www.rdck.bc.ca

Stream order classification based on system developed by Strahler. Source: Marsh 1998, 169.

Map Projection: UTM Zone 11 Map Datum: NAD83

![](_page_42_Figure_0.jpeg)

![](_page_42_Picture_1.jpeg)

# TRENDS IN SNOW ACCUMULATION

# 50 + % Decline in Snow Level

# 25 to 49 % Decline in Snow Level

# • 10 to 24 % Decline in Snow Level

# 5 to 9 % Decline in Snow Level

# **0** to 4 % Decline in Snow Level

# — Highway

Legend

# Creek

# Lake

# Administrative Boundary

# Framework The British Columbia Ministry of Environment operates a network of approximately 200 manual snow courses and 50 automated snow pillows. The snow survey program began in 1936, with a few stations in the Okanagan, Kootenay and Greater Vancouver area. Since then, the network has intermittently expanded and contracted over time. Many of the manual snow courses in the current active program have been surveyed since at least the 1950's, and are useful for the examination of long-term trends in snow conditions.

# Methodology

# The April 1st snow survey data, for the 50-year period between 1956-2005 have been analyzed. In general, the April 1st data represent the peak snow water of the Spring, produced by the weather patterns of the preceding Winter.

# Results

# Peak winter snow accumulation in British Columbia experienced substantial reduction between 1956 - 2005. In most major river basins, except the north (Skeena, Peace, Liard, Yukon), April 1st SWA has reduced between 14 and 47%.

# The arid portions of the central interior (Chilcotin plateau, Bonaparte, lower Thompson, Nicola, etc.) are moving towards a condition of substantially reduced winter snow accumulation, and increased frequency and spatial extent of periods with no snow. This has the potential to result in negative effects on community water supplies, in-stream flows for fish and other aquatic organisms, and other things.

# Source: River Forecast Centre, Ministry of Environment, 2007

# DATA SOURCES

# Snow Course Locations - Manual snow courses actively surveyed as part of the BC Snow survey program; Source: River Forecast Centre, Ministry of Environment TRIM Data - Planimetry, Unsurveyed Roads, and Contours; Source: Ministry of Water, Land and Air Protection Roads - Road centerline compiled 2003; Source: RDCK

# Regional District of Central Kootenay Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson, BC V1L 5R4 Phone: (250) 352-6665 Toll-Free 1-800-268-7325 (BC) Fax: (250) 352-9300 Internet: www.rdck.bc.ca

# Map Projection: UTM Zone 11 Map Datum: NAD83

![](_page_43_Picture_0.jpeg)

![](_page_43_Picture_3.jpeg)

# PINE BEETLE SEVERITY - 2007

![](_page_43_Figure_5.jpeg)

**DATA SOURCES** 

FHF Pine Beetle Coverage - 2007 summeray of forest heatlth consitions in BC; Source; Forest Practices Branch, Ministry of Forests & Range Cadastral Lot - Surveyed lots/parcels of land; Sources: Crown Land Registry Services and RDCK TRIM Data - Planimetry, Unsurveyed Roads, and Contours; Source: Ministry of Water, Land and Air Protection Roads - Road centerline compiled 2003; Source: RDCK

Regional District of Central Kootenay Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson, BC V1L 5R4 Phone: (250) 352-6665 Toll-Free 1-800-268-7325 (BC) Fax: (250) 352-9300 Internet: www.rdck.bc.ca

> Map Projection: UTM Zone 11 Map Datum: NAD83

cubic meters per day, and was determined by calculating the sum of all water licenses within each watershed. Watersheds not included in the to limited development in the region.

![](_page_44_Figure_2.jpeg)

![](_page_44_Figure_3.jpeg)

# WATER QUANTITY LICENSED FOR WITHDRAWAL

Water Licensed For Withdrawal

Legend

0.00 - 56.83 Cubic Metres Per Day

56.84 - 168.20 Cubic Metres Per Day

168.21 - 343.23 Cubic Metres Per Day

343.24 - 716.57 Cubic Metres Per Day

716.58 - 2121.65 Cubic Meters Per Day

2121.66 - 7282.75 Cubic Metres Per Day

No Data Available

Third Order Watershed: The streams occupying a drainage basin form a hierarchical network of channels that, in humid areas, hold increasingly

—— Highway

Creek

Administrative Boundary

larger volumes of water as you move toward the mouth of the basin. A stream's order is its rank, or relative position, within the network.

A first-order stream is a channel with no tributaries - that is, a channel at its upper reaches and near its source. A second-order stream is a channel fed by at least two first-order tributaries. The joining of two-second order streams forms a third-order stream. Stream ranking continues in this manner until the highest-ordered channel is reached.

First and second-order streams are located in the headwater areas of watersheds and typically convey small volumes of water. These lower-order streams are vulnerable to pollution because they are unable to dilute contaminants, assimilate much organic waste, Stream order classification based on system developed by Strahler. Source: Marsh 1998, 169. or remove sediments deposited on channel bottoms.

Source: "CGIS AT TOWSON UNIVERSITY," Retrieved July 17 2008, from http://chesapeake.towson.edu/landscape/impervious/all\_watersheds.asp

**DATA SOURCES** 

Cadastral Lot - Surveyed lots/parcels of land; Sources: Crown Land Registry Services and RDCK WSA -Third Order & Greater Waters (1:50k); Source: Ministry of Environment, ecosystems Branch Roads - Road centerline compiled 2003; Source: RDCK

Regional District of Central Kootenay Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson, BC V1L 5R4 Phone: (250) 352-6665 Toll-Free 1-800-268-7325 (BC) Fax: (250) 352-9300 Internet: www.rdck.bc.ca

Map Projection: UTM Zone 11 Map Datum: NAD83

![](_page_44_Picture_25.jpeg)

![](_page_44_Figure_26.jpeg)

![](_page_45_Picture_0.jpeg)

![](_page_45_Picture_1.jpeg)

# EXISTING WATER LICENSES & POINTS OF DIVERSION

# Legend

 Existing Water Licenses/Points of Diversion (10,358 total; excluding refused licenses)

3RD Order Watershed

Creek

Note: See index maps for detailed area information.

----- Highway Lake

# Administrative Boundaries

# **DATA SOURCES**

POD - Province-wide SDE spatial layer displaying water license points of diversion joined with license information; Source: Management & Standards Branch (MOE).
TRIM Data - Planimetry, Unsurveyed Roads, and Contours; Source: Ministry of Water, Land and Air Protection
Roads - Road centerline compiled 2003; Source: RDCK
Regional District of Central Kootenay Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson, BC V1L 5R4
Phone: (250) 352-6665
Toll-Free 1-800-268-7325 (BC)

Toll-Free 1-800-268-7325 (BC) Fax: (250) 352-9300 Internet: www.rdck.bc.ca

Map Projection: UTM Zone 11 Map Datum: NAD83

![](_page_46_Figure_0.jpeg)

![](_page_46_Figure_3.jpeg)

![](_page_46_Figure_4.jpeg)

![](_page_46_Figure_5.jpeg)

![](_page_46_Figure_6.jpeg)

![](_page_46_Picture_7.jpeg)

# **REGIONAL DISTRICT OF CENTRAL KOOTENAY**

# DEVELOPED AQUIFERS

aquifer

Precipitation

Legend

**Aquifer Class** 

Medium Development, High Vulnernability

Medium Development, Medium Vulnernability 

Medium Development, Low Vulnernability

Low Development, High Vulnernability

Low Development, High Vulnernability

Low Development, High Vulnerability

\* Vulnerability level refers to risk of surface contamination Note: See index maps for detailed area information.

Street Addressing •

Highway

Creek

Administrative Boundary

Lake

recharge area. zone of aeration

Confined Recharge Are

bedrock groundwater (zone of saturation)"

artesian w

AS AS

Il requiring a pur

water table

**Inconfined Aquifer Recharge Area** 

The level of development of an aquifer is determined by subjectively assessing demand versus the aquifers yield or productivity. A high (I), moderate (II), or low (III) level of development can be designated. The vulnerability of an aquifer to contamination from surface sources, or equivalently to potential climate change, is assessed based on: type, thickness and extent of geologic materials overlaying the aquifer, depth to water (or top of confined aquifers), Evaporation and transpiration and the type of aquifer materials. A high (A), moderate (B), or low (C) vulnerability can be designated. The combination of the three Evaporation development and three vulnerability categories results in nine aquifer classes. In the RDCK since there are no high development levels, only six of these classes are represented. ~Source: Science and Information Branch, Ministry of Environment, 2008. Not all aquifers are in the dataset. This is an ongoing process. Only developed aquifers are identified, mapped and classified. Undeveloped aquifers discharge area are not identified. For the aquifer classification database: Attribute data derived from analysis and interpretation of water well record lithology. Delineations, classifications and rankings may change over time as more data becomes available or land and aquifer use conditions change.

# **DATA SOURCES**

GW\_WTR\_AQUIFERS - Developed Ground Water Aquifers in BC; Source: Science & Information Branch, Ministry of Environment Cadastral Lot - Surveyed lots/parcels of land; Sources: Crown Land Registry Services and RDCK TRIM Data - Planimetry, Unsurveyed Roads, and Contours; Source: Ministry of Water, Land and Air Protection Roads - Road centerline compiled 2003; Source: RDCK Regional District of Central Kootenay Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson,

BC V1L 5R4 Phone: (250) 352-6665 Toll-Free 1-800-268-7325 (BC) Fax: (250) 352-9300 Internet: www.rdck.bc.ca

Map Projection: UTM Zone 11 Map Datum: NAD83

![](_page_47_Figure_0.jpeg)

![](_page_47_Picture_1.jpeg)

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF CENTRAL KOOTENAY

# AREAS EXPERIENCING GROWTH & DEVELOPMENT

Administrative Boundaries

Legend

Recent Commercial Development
 Parcel Boundary

Recent Residential Development
 Lake

— Highway

Recent residential development includes permits issued for construction of single family dwellings, including cabins and guest houses, manufactured homes, and mobile homes (single and double-wide since 2001. There have been a total of 488 permits issued for residential development since 2001.

Recent commercial development includes permits issued for commercial buildings, commercial building additions, industrial buildings, lodge/hostel, and tourist accommodation since 2001. There have been a total of 115 commercial building permits issued since 2001.

Source: RDCK Development Services, July 2008

# DATA SOURCES

Building Permit Data - Residential and commercial building permits issued; Source: Regional District of Central Kootenay Cadastral Lot - Surveyed lots/parcels of land; Sources: Crown Land Registry Services and RDCK TRIM Data - Planimetry, Unsurveyed Roads, and Contours; Source: Ministry of Water, Land and Air Protection Roads - Road centerline compiled 2003; Source: RDCK Regional District of Central Kootenay Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson, BC V1L 5R4 Phone: (250) 352-6665 Toll-Free 1-800-268-7325 (BC) Fax: (250) 352-9300 Internet: www.rdck.bc.ca

> Map Projection: UTM Zone 11 Map Datum: NAD83

This map was plotted on: 8/25/2008

Note: See index maps for detailed area information.

![](_page_48_Picture_0.jpeg)

![](_page_48_Picture_1.jpeg)

# REGIONAL DISTRICT OF CENTRAL KOOTENAY

# EXISTING WATER LICENSES & APPLICATIONS IN PROGRESS

**Other Licenses** 

**Active Applications** 

**Refused Applications** 

**Current Licenses** 

 $\diamond$ 

0

 $\square$ 

# Legend

- ----- Creek
- Lake
- —— Highway
- 3RD Order Watersheds

# Administrative Boundary

# Note: See index maps for detailed area information.

Other Licenses include licenses which have a status of pending, or are considered an un-cleared application. There are 130 water licenses in the RDCK included in this category.

Refused applications include those which been have refused (often for 'no water'). There are 184 licenses within the RDCK that have been refused.

Currently there are a total of 10,013 active water licenses, and 215 applications in progress. Applications in progress are those which are classified as an active application or those which are awaiting signing.

# **DATA SOURCES**

POD - Province-wide SDE spatial layer displaying water licenses points of diversion joined with water license information; Source: Management & Standards Branch (MOE).
TRIM Data - Planimetry, Unsurveyed Roads, and Contours; Source: Ministry of Water, Land and Air Protection
Roads - Road centerline compiled 2003; Source: RDCK

Regional District of Central Kootenay Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson, BC V1L 5R4 Phone: (250) 352-6665 Toll-Free 1-800-268-7325 (BC) Fax: (250) 352-9300 Internet: www.rdck.bc.ca

Map Projection: UTM Zone 11 Map Datum: NAD83

![](_page_49_Figure_0.jpeg)

![](_page_49_Picture_1.jpeg)

# **CENTRAL KOOTENAY**

![](_page_49_Figure_3.jpeg)

Legend

- Street Addressing Administrative Boundary Highway
  - Allocation Restrictions

Creek

![](_page_49_Picture_8.jpeg)

Note: See index maps for detailed area information.

Licensed Water Sources with Allocation Restrictions Restrictions imposed include:
-Refused No Water (RNW) : This indicates that license applications have been refused based on insufficient flows.
-Possible Water Shortage (PWS) - Creek / river has been identified by water management personnel as potentially having insufficient water during dry periods. Rational for this category is not clearly defined.
-Fully Recorded (FR) : The creek cannot support any further water licenses without causing conflict to users.
There are a total of 669 water allocation restrictions within the RDCK.

# DATA SOURCES

Water Allocation Concerns - Location of water sources designated as having a water allocation restriction; Source: Science and Information Branch (MOE) Cadastral Lot - Surveyed lots/parcels of land; Sources: Crown Land Registry Services and RDCK TRIM Data - Planimetry, Unsurveyed Roads, and Contours; Source: Ministry of Water, Land and Air Protection Roads - Road centerline compiled 2003; Source: RDCK

Regional District of Central Kootenay Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson, BC V1L 5R4 Phone: (250) 352-6665 Toll-Free 1-800-268-7325 (BC) Fax: (250) 352-9300 Internet: www.rdck.bc.ca

Map Projection: UTM Zone 11 Map Datum: NAD83

![](_page_50_Figure_0.jpeg)

**PORTION OF AREA G** 

![](_page_50_Figure_3.jpeg)

![](_page_50_Figure_4.jpeg)

![](_page_50_Figure_5.jpeg)

![](_page_50_Picture_6.jpeg)

**REGIONAL DISTRICT OF CENTRAL KOOTENAY** 

# **GROUND WATER EXTRACTION**

Lake

— Highway

• Ground Water Well

Administrative Boundary

Legend

**Aquifer Class** 

Medium Development, High Vulnernability

Medium Development, Medium Vulnernability 📕 

Medium Development, Low Vulnernability

Low Development, High Vulnernability

Low Development, High Vulnernability

Low Development, High Vulnernability

\* Vulnerability level refers to the risk of surface contamination Note: See index maps for detailed area information.

The total mumber of ground water wells within the RDCK wall the time post data additisition was 1,563. There is no statutory requirement for well drillers to submit these records to the Government of British Columbia,

therefore not all ground water wells are represented in this dataset. The percentage of wells represented is unknown, however the best estimate is approximately 50%. The dataset is in a constant state of update and does not remain static for any length of time.

Not all aquifers are in the dataset. Building the inventory is an ongoing process. Only developed aquifers have been identified, mapped and classified. Undeveloped aquifers are not included.

Attribute data was derived from analysis and interpretation of water well record lithology. Delineations, classifications and rankings may change over time as more data becomes available or land and aquifer use conditions change.

~Source: Science and Information Branch, Ministry of Environment, June 2008.

# **DATA SOURCES**

GW\_WTR\_WL - Locations of Ground Water Wells within the RDCK; Source: Science & Information Branch, Ministry of Environment GW\_WTR\_AQUIFERS - Developed Ground Water Aquifers; Source: Science & Information Branch, Ministry of Environment Cadastral Lot - Surveyed lots/parcels of land; Sources: Crown Land Registry Services and RDCK TRIM Data - Planimetry, Unsurveyed Roads, and Contours; Source: Ministry of Water, Land and Air Protection Roads - Road centerline compiled 2003; Source: RDCK

Regional District of Central Kootenay Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson, BC V1L 5R4 Phone: (250) 352-6665 Toll-Free 1-800-268-7325 (BC) Fax: (250) 352-9300 Internet: www.rdck.bc.ca

Map Projection: UTM Zone 11 Map Datum: NAD83 This map was plotted on: 08/25/2008

![](_page_51_Picture_0.jpeg)

**Local Well Information** 

![](_page_51_Picture_2.jpeg)

![](_page_52_Figure_0.jpeg)

![](_page_53_Picture_1.jpeg)

	Construction Date: 2008-11-20 00:00:00.0		
Well Tag Number: 94733			
_	Driller: Owen's Drilling Lta. Wall Identification Dista Numbers 20200		
Owner: TIMBERSTONE DEVELOPMENT CORP	Dista Attached Buy TIM NOTCHEMANN		
	Where Plate Attached, TOP OF CASING		
Address:	Where Flate Attached: IOF OF CASING		
Area:	Woll Viold: 20 (Drillor's Estimate) U.S. Callens per Minute		
	Development Method. Jir lifting		
WELL LOCATION:	Development Method, All illing		
KOOTENAY Land District	Artesian Flow.		
District Lot: 913 Plan: NEP 82192 Lot: A	Artesian Pressure (ft):		
Township: Section: Range:	Static Level: 20 feet		
Indian Reserve: Meridian: Block:			
Quarter:	WATER OILLITY.		
Island:	Character.		
BCGS Number (NAD 27): 082F037341 Well:	Colour		
	Odour:		
Class of Well: Water supply	Well Disinfected: N		
Subclass of Well: Domestic	EMS ID:		
Orientation of Well: Vertical	Water Chemistry Info Flag: N		
Status of Well: New	Field Chemistry Info Flag:		
Well Use: Private Domestic	Site Info (SEAM):		
Observation Well Number:			
Observation Well Status:	Water Utility:		
Construction Method:	Water Supply System Name:		
Diameter: inches	Water Supply System Well Name:		
Casing drive shoe: Y			
Well Depth: 64.5 feet	SURFACE SEAL:		
Elevation: feet (ASL)	Flag: Y		
Final Casing Stick Up: 12 inches	Material: Bentonite clay		
Well Cap Type: BOLT ON	Method:		
Bedrock Depth: feet	Depth (ft): 15 feet		
Lithology Info Flag: Y	Thickness (in): 2 inches		
File Info Flag: N	Liner from To: feet		
Sieve info Flag: N			
Screen Inio Flag: 1	WELL CLOSURE INFORMATION:		
Cita Infa Dataila.	Reason For Closure:		
Site into Details:	Method of Closure:		
Other Info Detailer	Closure Sealant Material:		
other mito becarrs.	Closure Backfill Material:		
	Details of Closure:		
Screen from to feet	Type Slot Size		
Casing from to feet	Diameter Material Drive Shoe		
0 61.5	6 Steel Y		
GENERAL REMARKS:			
LITHOLOGY INFORMATION:			
From 0 to 5 Ft. Medium CLAY & GR	AVEL brown		
From 5 to 25 Ft. Medium GRAVEL &	SAND brown		
From 25 to 50 Ft. Medium brown	coarse sand		
From 50 to 65 Ft. Medium 20 U.S.	Gallons per Minute A LITTLE GRAVEL brown coarse sand		
Detrois to Mala			

- <u>Return to Main</u>
- <u>Return to Search Options</u>
- Return to Search Criteria

### Information Disclaimer

![](_page_54_Picture_1.jpeg)

	Construction Date: 2008-11-20 00:00:00.0		
Well Tag Number: 94734	Driller: Owen's Drilling Ltd.		
Owner: CITW INC	Plate Attached By: MIKE CALDWELL		
Address:	Where Plate Attached: TOP OF CASING		
Area:	PRODUCTION DATA AT TIME OF DRILLING: Well Yield: 10 (Driller's Estimate) U.S. Gallons per Minute		
WELL LOCATION:	Development Method: Air filting		
KOOTENAY Land District	Artonian Flow.		
District Lot: 913 Plan: NEP 82192 Lot: A	Artesian Pressure (ft).		
Township: Section: Range:	Static Level: 30 feet		
Indian Reserve: Meridian: Block:			
Quarter:	WATER OUALTTY.		
Island:	Character:		
BCGS Number (NAD 27): 082F037341 Well:	Colour:		
	Odour:		
Class of Well: Water supply	Well Disinfected: N		
Subclass of Well: Domestic	EMS ID:		
Orientation of Well: Vertical	Water Chemistry Info Flag: N		
Status of Well: New	Field Chemistry Info Flag:		
Well Use: Private Domestic	Site Info (SEAM):		
Observation Well Number:	orec mito (omit).		
Observation Well Status:	Water Utility:		
Construction Method:	Water Supply System Name:		
Diameter: inches	Water Supply System Well Name:		
Casing drive shoe: Y			
Well Depth: 58 feet	SURFACE SEAL:		
Elevation: 1827 feet (ASL)	Flag: Y		
Final Casing Stick Up: 12 inches	Material: Bentonite clay		
Well Cap Type: BOLT ON	Method: Poured		
Bedrock Depth: feet	Depth (ft): 15 feet		
Lithology Info Flag: Y	Thickness (in): 2 inches		
File Info Flag: N	Liner from To: feet		
Sieve Info Flag: N			
Screen Info Flag: N	WELL CLOSURE INFORMATION:		
	Reason For Closure:		
Site Info Details:	Method of Closure:		
Other Info Flag:	Closure Sealant Material:		
Other Into Details:	Closure Backfill Material:		
	Details of Closure:		
Screen from to feet	Type Slot Size		
Casing from to feet	Diameter Material Drive Shoe		
0 58	6 Steel Y		
GENERAL REMARKS:			
LITHOLOGY INFORMATION:			
From 0 to 15 Ft. Loose SAND & GRAVEL brown			
From 15 to 35 Ft. Medium GRAVEL & BOULDERS brown			
From 35 to 58 Ft. Medium SAND & GR	AVEL 10 U.S. Gallons per Minute brown		
Return to Main			

- Return to Search Options
- Return to Search Criteria

### Information Disclaimer

![](_page_55_Picture_1.jpeg)

	Construction Date: 2008-11-20 00:00:00.0		
Well Tag Number: 94735	Driller: Owen's Drilling Ltd.		
Owner: CITW INC	Plate Attached By: TIM HOECHSMANN		
Address:	Where Plate Attached: TOP OF CASING		
Area:	PRODUCTION DATA AT TIME OF DRILLING: Well Yield: 15 (Driller's Estimate) U.S. Gallons per Minute		
WELL LOCATION:	Development Method: Air lifting		
KOOTENAY Land District	Pump Test Info Flag: N		
District Lot: 913 Plan: NEP 82192 Lot: A	Artesian Flow:		
Township: Section: Range:	Artesian Pressure (it):		
Indian Reserve: Meridian: Block:	Static Level: 30 feet		
Quarter:			
Island:	WATER QUALITY:		
BCGS Number (NAD 27): 082F037341 Well:	Character:		
	Colour:		
Class of Well: Water supply	Odour:		
Subclass of Well: Domestic	Well Disinfected: N		
Orientation of Well: Vertical	EMS ID:		
Status of Well: New	Water Chemistry Info Flag: N		
Well Heer Private Demostic	Field Chemistry Info Flag:		
Observation Well Number.	Site Info (SEAM):		
Observation Well Status:			
Observation Weil Status:	Water Utility:		
Construction Method:	Water Supply System Name:		
Diameter: inches	Water Supply System Well Name:		
Casing drive snoe: Y			
Well Deptn: 55 feet	SURFACE SEAL:		
Elevation: 1/16 feet (ASL)	Flag: Y		
Final Casing Stick Up: 12 inches	Material: Bentonite clay		
Well Cap Type: BOLT ON	Method: Poured		
Bedrock Depth: feet	Depth (ft): 15 feet		
Lithology Info Flag: Y	Thickness (in): 2 inches		
File Info Flag: N	Liner from To: feet		
Sieve Info Flag: N			
Screen Info Flag: N	WELL CLOSURE INFORMATION.		
	Reason For Closure:		
Site Info Details:	Method of Closure:		
Other Info Flag:	Closure Sealant Material:		
Other Info Details:	Closure Backfill Material.		
	Details of Closure:		
Screen from to feet	Type Slot Size		
Casing from to feet	Diameter Material Drive Shoe		
0 55	6 Steel Y		
GENERAL REMARKS:			
LITHOLOGY INFORMATION:			
From 0 to 10 Ft. Medium CLAY & GH	AVEL brown		
From 10 to 55 Ft. Medium SAND & GH	RAVEL 15 U.S. Gallons per Minute brown		
<u>Return to Main</u>			

- Return to Search Options
- Return to Search Criteria

### Information Disclaimer

![](_page_56_Picture_1.jpeg)

	Construc	tion Date: 2008-11-21 00:00:00.0
Well Tag Number: 94736		
	Driller:	Owen's Drilling Ltd.
Owner: TIMBERSTONE DEVELOPMENT CORP	& CITW INC	tachod Ru: TIM HOECHSMANN
	Where Pla	ate Attached. TOP OF CASING
Address:		
7	PRODUCTIO	ON DATA AT TIME OF DRILLING:
Area:	Well Yie	ld: 15 (Driller's Estimate) U.S. Gallons per Minute
WELL LOCATION.	Developm	ent Method: Air lifting
KOOTENAY Land District	Pump Tes	t Info Flag: N
District Lot: 913 Plan: NEP 82192 Lo	t: A Artesian	Flow:
Township: Section: Range:	Artesian	Pressure (ft):
Indian Reserve: Meridian: Block:	Static L	evel: 30 feet
Quarter:	WATED OUT	AT TUV.
Island:	Character	яшии. r.
BCGS Number (NAD 27): 082F037341 Wel	1: 4 Colour:	±•
	Odour:	
Class of Well: Water supply	Well Dis	infected: N
Subclass of Well: Domestic	EMS ID:	
Status of Woll: Now	Water Che	emistry Info Flag: N
Well Use. Private Domestic	Field Che	emistry Info Flag:
Observation Well Number:	Site Info	o (SEAM):
Observation Well Status:		
Construction Method:	Water Ut:	ility:
Diameter: inches	Water Suj	pply System Name:
Casing drive shoe: Y	[water Su]	ppiy System well Name:
Well Depth: 55 feet	SUBFACE	SEAL.
Elevation: 1716 feet (ASL)	Flag: Y	
Final Casing Stick Up: 12 inches	Material	: Bentonite clay
Well Cap Type: BOLT ON	Method:	
Bedrock Depth: Leet	Depth (f	t): 15 feet
Filo Info Flag: N	Thicknes	s (in): 2 inches
Sieve Info Flag. N	Liner fro	om To: feet
Screen Info Flag: N		
	WELL CLO	SURE INFORMATION:
Site Info Details:	Reason Fo	or Closure:
Other Info Flag:	Method of	I Closure:
Other Info Details:	Closure	Backfill Material.
	Details	of Closure:
Screen from to feet	Туре	Slot Size
Casing from to feet	Diameter	Material Drive Shoe
0 55	6	Steel Y
GENERAL REMARKS:		
LITHOLOGY INFORMATION:		
From 0 to 10 Ft. Medium CLAY	& GRAVEL brown	
From 10 to 55 Ft. Medium SANE	& GRAVEL 15 U.S. Ga	allons per Minute brown
Return to Main		

- Return to Search Options
- Return to Search Criteria

### Information Disclaimer

![](_page_57_Picture_1.jpeg)

	Construction Date: 2008-11-21 00:00:00.0		
Well Tag Number: 94737	Driller: Owen's Drilling Ltd.		
Owner: VISSER	Plate Attached By: MIKE CALDWELL		
Address:	Where Plate Attached: TOP OF CASING		
Area:	PRODUCTION DATA AT TIME OF DRILLING: Well Yield: 15 (Driller's Estimate) U.S. Gallons per Minute		
WELL LOCATION:	Development Method, All illing		
KOOTENAY Land District	Artesian Flow:		
District Lot: 913 Plan: NEP 82192 Lot: A	Artesian Pressure (ft):		
Township: Section: Range:	Static Level: 30 feet		
Indian Reserve: Meridian: Block:			
Quarter:	WATER OUALTTY:		
Island:	Character:		
BCGS Number (NAD 27): 082F037341 Well:	Colour:		
	Odour:		
Class of Well: Water supply	Well Disinfected: N		
Subclass of Well: Domestic	EMS ID:		
Orientation of Well: Vertical	Water Chemistry Info Flag: N		
Status of Well: New	Field Chemistry Info Flag:		
Well Use: Private Domestic	Site Info (SEAM):		
Observation Well Number:			
Observation Well Status:	Water Utility:		
Construction Method:	Water Supply System Name:		
Diameter: inches	Water Supply System Well Name:		
Casing drive shoe: Y			
Well Deptn: 54 reet	SURFACE SEAL:		
Elevation: 1810 Teet (ASL)	Flag: Y		
Final Casing Stick Up: 12 inches	Material: Bentonite clay		
Well Cap Type: BOLT ON	Method: Poured		
Bedrock Depth: Teet	Depth (ft): 15 feet		
Lithology Into Flag: 1	Thickness (in): 2 inches		
File Info Flag: N	Liner from To: feet		
Sieve into Flag: N			
Screen into Flag: N	WELL CLOSURE INFORMATION:		
Cite Info Detaile.	Reason For Closure:		
Other Info Flag.	Method of Closure:		
Other Info Details.	Closure Sealant Material:		
ocher into becaris.	Closure Backfill Material:		
	Details of Closure:		
Screen from to feet	Type Slot Size		
Casing from to feet	Diameter Material Drive Shoe		
0 54	6 Steel Y		
GENERAL REMARKS:			
LITHOLOGY INFORMATION:			
From 0 to 15 Ft. Medium SAND, GRAVEL & BOULDERS brown			
From 15 to 35 Ft. Medium GRAVEL & BOULDERS brown			
From 35 to 54 Ft. Medium SAND & GR	AVEL 15 U.S. Gallons per Minute brown		
<u>Return to Main</u>			

- Return to Search Options
- Return to Search Criteria

### Information Disclaimer

![](_page_58_Picture_1.jpeg)

	Construction Date: 2010-10-27 00:00:00.0
Well Tag Number: 103468	Drillon, Mild Most Drilling
	Driffer: Wild West Driffing Well Identification Plate Number: 20444
Owner: BUCYK	Plate Attached Put CHDIS PARITIC
	Mhere Plate Attached: ON CAP
Address:	Where riate Attached. ON CAR
	PRODUCTION DATA AT TIME OF DETLITIC.
Area:	Well Vield: 30 (Driller's Estimate) U.S. Callons per Minute
	Development Method, Nir lifting
WELL LOCATION:	Dump Test Info Flag. N
Land District	Artesian Flow:
District Lot: 913 Plan: 2811 Lot:	Artesian Pressure (ft):
Township: Section: Range:	Static Level: 36 83 feet
Indian Reserve: Meridian: Block: 12	Static Hevel. 30.05 feet
Quarter:	
Island:	Character.
BCGS Number (NAD 27): 082F037341 Well:	
	Odour:
Class of Well: Water supply	Well Disinfected: Y
Subclass of Well: Domestic	EMS ID.
Orientation of Well: Vertical	Water Chemistry Info Flag. Y
Status of Well: New	Field Chemistry Info Flag:
Well Use: Private Domestic	Site Info (SEAM).
Observation Well Number:	Site into (SEM).
Observation Well Status:	Water Utility:
Construction Method:	Water Supply System Name:
Diameter: inches	Water Supply System Wall Name.
Casing drive shoe: N	water Suppry System werr Name.
Well Depth: 76 feet	SURFACE SEAL.
Elevation: 1800 feet (ASL)	Flag. N
Final Casing Stick Up: 35 inches	Material: Bentonite clav
Well Cap Type: LOCK	Material. Denconice clay Method: Poured
Bedrock Depth: feet	Depth (ft): 20 feet
Lithology Info Flag: N	Thickness (in) · 1 13 inches
File Info Flag: N	Liper from To: feet
Sieve Info Flag: N	Liner from fo. feet
Screen Info Flag: N	WELL CLOSUDE INFORMATION.
	Peacon For Closure:
Site Info Details:	Method of Closure.
Other Info Flag:	Closure Sealant Material.
Other Info Details:	Closure Backfill Material.
	Details of Closure:
Screen from to feet	Type Slot Size
Casing from to feet	Diameter Material Drive Shoe
0 76	6.63 Steel N
GENERAL REMARKS:	
TD @ 76'.	
LITHOLOGY INFORMATION:	
From 0 to 9 Ft. Hard grey	boulders
From 9 to 23 Ft. Medium SAND & G	RAVEL grey
From 23 to 31 Ft. Soft brown	sandy clay
From 31 to 76 Ft. Medium 30 Gall	ons per Minute (U.S./Imperial) tan sand
Return to Main	

- Return to Search Options
- Return to Search Criteria

### Information Disclaimer

![](_page_59_Picture_1.jpeg)

	Construction Date: 2010-05-05 00:00:00.0		
Well Tag Number, 103702			
The second secon	Driller: Owen's Drilling Ltd.		
Owner: GRAMLICH CONSTRUCTION	Well Identification Plate Number: 28841		
	Plate Attached By: TIM HORCHSMANN		
Address: 10901 HIGHWAY 3A	Where Plate Attached: TOP OF CASING		
	DDODUCTION DATA AT TIME OF DDITIINC.		
Area: SANCA/BOSWELL	PRODUCTION DATA AT TIME OF DRILLING;		
	Development Method: Air lifting		
WELL LOCATION:	Pump Test Info Flag: N		
KOOTENAY Land District	Artesian Flow:		
District Lot: 913 Plan: 4808 Lot: 1	Artesian Pressure (ft):		
Township: Section: Range:	Static Level: 30 feet		
Indian Reserve: Meridian: Block:			
Quarter:	WATER QUALITY:		
BCCS Number (NAD 27), 082E0373/1 Well,	Character:		
BCGS NUMBEL (NAD 27). 0021057541 WEII.	Colour:		
Class of Well: Water supply	Odour:		
Subclass of Well: Domestic	Well Disinfected: N		
Orientation of Well: Vertical	EMS ID:		
Status of Well: New	Water Chemistry Info Flag: N		
Well Use: Private Domestic	Field Chemistry Info Flag:		
Observation Well Number:	SITE INIO (SEAM):		
Observation Well Status:	Water Utility.		
Construction Method:	Water Supply System Name:		
Diameter: inches	Water Supply System Wall Name.		
Casing drive shoe: Y	nater suppry system werr name.		
Well Depth: 55 feet	SURFACE SEAL:		
Elevation: 1796 feet (ASL)	Flag: N		
Final Casing Stick Up: 12 inches	Material: Bentonite clay		
Well Cap Type: BOLT ON	Method:		
Lithology Info Flog, N	Depth (ft): 15 feet		
File Info Flag. N	Thickness (in): 2 inches		
Sieve Info Flag. N	Liner from To: feet		
Screen Info Flag: N			
	WELL CLOSURE INFORMATION:		
Site Info Details:	Reason For Closure:		
Other Info Flag:	Method of Closure:		
Other Info Details:	Closure Sealant Material:		
	Details of Closure:		
Screen from to feet	Tune Clot Size		
	TAbe 2100 2176		
Casing from to feet	Diameter Material Drive Shoe		
55	o Steel Y		
GENERAL REMARKS:			
LITHOLOGY INFORMATION:			
From 0 to 15 Ft. Medium CLAY & B	DULDERS brown		
From 15 to 30 Ft. Medium SAND & BO	DULDERS brown		
From 30 to 55 Ft. Medium SAND & G	RAVEL 15 U.S. Gallons per Minute brown		
Return to Main			

- Return to Search Options
- Return to Search Criteria

### Information Disclaimer

![](_page_60_Picture_1.jpeg)

	Construction Date: 2010-05-06 00:00:00.0			
Well Tag Number: 103709	Driller, Owen's Drilling Itd			
	Well Identification Plate Number: 28844			
Owner: MEHL	Plate Attached By: TIM HORCHSMANN			
Address: 10901 HIGHWAY 3A	Where Plate Attached: TOP OF CASING			
Area: SANCA/BOSWELL	PRODUCTION DATA AT TIME OF DRILLING: Well Yield: 25 (Driller's Estimate) U.S. Gallons per Minute			
WELL LOCATION:	Development Method: Air litting Pump Test Info Flag: N			
KOOTENAY Land District	Artesian Flow.			
District Lot: 913 Plan: 4808 Lot: 1	Artesian Pressure (ft.):			
Township: Section: Range:	Static Level: 30 feet			
Indian Reserve: Meridian: Block:				
Quarter:	WATER OUALITY:			
Island:	Character:			
BCGS Number (NAD 27): 082F037341 Well:	Colour:			
	Odour:			
Class of Well: Water supply	Well Disinfected: N			
Subclass of Well: Domestic	EMS ID:			
Ctatus of Woll, New	Water Chemistry Info Flag: N			
Noll Use: Private Demostic	Field Chemistry Info Flag:			
Observation Well Number:	Site Info (SEAM):			
Observation Well Status:				
Construction Method:	Water Utility:			
Diameter: inches	Water Supply System Name:			
Casing drive shoe Y	Water Supply System Well Name:			
Well Depth: 55 feet				
Elevation: 1740 feet (ASL)	SURFACE SEAL:			
Final Casing Stick Up: 12 inches	Flag: N			
Well Cap Type: BOLT ON	Material: Bentonite clay			
Bedrock Depth: feet	Method: Poured			
Lithology Info Flag: N	Depth (it): 15 feet			
File Info Flag: N	Thickness (in): 2 inches			
Sieve Info Flag: N	Liner from To: feet			
Screen Info Flag: N	WELL CLOSUDE INFORMATION.			
	Reason For Closure.			
Site Info Details:	Method of Closure.			
Other Info Flag:	Closure Sealant Material:			
Other Info Details:	Closure Backfill Material:			
	Details of Closure:			
Screen from to feet	Type Slot Size			
Casing from to feet	Diameter Material Drive Shoe			
0 52	6 Steel Y			
GENERAL REMARKS:				
LITHOLOGY INFORMATION:				
From 0 to 10 Ft. Medium CLAY & B	OULDERS brown			
From 10 to 35 Ft. Medium SAND & G	RAVEL brown			
From 35 to 50 Ft. Medium brow	n sand			
From 50 to 55 Ft. Medium SAND & G	RAVEL 25 U.S. Gallons per Minute brown			
Return to Main				

- Return to Search Options
- Return to Search Criteria

### Information Disclaimer

![](_page_61_Picture_1.jpeg)

	Construction Date: 2010-05-06 00:00:00.0				
Well Tag Number: 103712	Duillon, Quanta Duilling Itd				
	Driller: Owen's Drilling Ltd. Well Identification Plate Number: 28843				
Owner: LEA	Plate Attached By: TIM HORCHSMANN				
	Where Plate Attached: TOP OF CASING				
Address: 10901 HIGHWAY 3A					
Area: BOSWELL/SANCA	PRODUCTION DATA AT TIME OF DRILLING: Well Yield: 25 (Driller's Estimate) U.S. Gallons per Minute				
WELL LOCATION:	Development Method: Air lifting				
KOOTENAY Land District	Pump lest into flag: N				
District Lot: 913 Plan: 4808 Lot: 1	Artesian Pressure (ft):				
Township: Section: Range:	Static Level: 30 feet				
Indian Reserve: Meridian: Block:					
Quarter:	WATER QUALITY:				
Island:	Character:				
BUGS NUMBER (NAD 27): U82EU37341 Well:	Colour:				
Class of Woll, Water supply	Odour:				
Subclass of Woll: Demostic	Well Disinfected: N				
Orientation of Well, Vertical	EMS ID:				
Status of Woll, New	Water Chemistry Info Flag: N				
Mell Mag. Private Demostic	Field Chemistry Info Flag:				
Observation Well Number:	Site Info (SEAM):				
Observation Well Status:					
Construction Method:	Water Utility:				
Diameter: inches	Water Supply System Name:				
Casing drive shoe: Y	Water Supply System Well Name:				
Well Depth: 55 feet					
Elevation: 1768 feet (ASL)	SURFACE SEAL:				
Final Casing Stick Up: 12 inches	Flag: N				
Well Cap Type: BOLT ON	Material: Bentonite clay				
Bedrock Depth: feet	Method: Poured				
Lithology Info Flag: N	Depth (ft): 15 feet				
File Info Flag: N	Thickness (in): 2 inches				
Sieve Info Flag: N	Liner from To: feet				
Screen Info Flag: N					
	WELL CLOSURE INFORMATION:				
Site Info Details:	Reason For Closure:				
Other Info Flag:	Method of Closufe: Closure Scalant Material:				
Other Info Details:	Closure Backfill Material:				
	Details of Closure:				
Screen from to foot	Turne Slot Size				
	20 TABE 210C 2176				
33	3U				
Casing from to feet	Diameter Material Drive Shoe				
null 52	6 Steel Y				
GENERAL REMARKS:					
LITHOLOGY INFORMATION:					
rom U to 10 Ft. Medium CLAY & BOULDERS brown					
JIII IU LU SJET. MEGLUM SANDA GRAVEL DIOWN					
From 50 to 55 Ft. Medium Shing 25 H.S. Callons per Minuto brown					
TITUM JO CO JJ FC. MECIUM SAND & G	AAVEN 25 0.5. Gallons per Minute Diown				

- <u>Return to Main</u>
- Return to Search Options
- Return to Search Criteria

### Information Disclaimer

![](_page_62_Picture_1.jpeg)

		Construction Da	Construction Date: 2010-05-05 00:00:00.0				
Well Tag Number	103715				ļ		
		Driller: Owen's	Driller: Owen's Drilling Ltd.				
Owner: 758844 ALBERTA LTD		Well Identifica	Well Identification Plate Number: 28842				
		Plate Attached	Plate Attached By: TIM HORCHSMANN				
Address: 10901 HI	GHWAY 3A	where Plate Att	Where Plate Attached: UNKNOWN				
		ישעת ווארדשמותהסס			ļ		
Area: SANCA/BOSWE	LL	Well Vield.	Mell Vield. 15 (Driller's Fetimate) U.S. Callons per Minute				
		Development Met	Development Method: Air lifting				
WELL LOCATION:		Pump Test Info	Pump Test Info Flag: N				
KOOTENAY Land Dis	strict	Artesian Flow:	Artesian Flow:				
District Lot: 913	8 Plan: 4808 Lot: 1	Artesian Pressi	Artesian Pressure (ft):				
Township: Sectio	on: Range:	Static Level: 3	30 feet				
Indian Reserve:	Meridian: Block:						
Quarter:		WATER OUALITY:	WATER OUALITY:				
Island:	07) 0000000000	Character:	Character:				
BCGS Number (NAD	27): U82F037341 We	Colour:	Colour:				
Close of Walls W	tor currl-	Odour:					
CLASS OF WELL: Wa	Demostic	Well Disinfecte	Well Disinfected: N				
Subciass of Well:	DOMESTIC	EMS ID:	EMS ID:				
Offendation of We	err: verticar	Water Chemistry	Water Chemistry Info Flag: N				
Moll Mac. Drivets	Status of Well: New		Field Chemistry Info Flag:				
Observation Well	Number:	Site Info (SEAN	Site Info (SEAM):				
Observation Well	Status.						
Construction Meth	od.	Water Utility:	Water Utility:				
Diameter: inches		Water Supply Sy	Water Supply System Name:				
Casing drive shoe	· · · ·	Water Supply Sy	Water Supply System Well Name:				
Well Depth: 55 fe							
Elevation: 1785	feet (ASL)	SURFACE SEAL:	SURFACE SEAL:				
Final Casing Stic	:k Up: 12 inches	Flag: N	Flag: N				
Well Cap Type:		Material: Bento	Material: Bentonite clay				
Bedrock Depth: f	eet	Method: Poured	Method: Poured				
Lithology Info Fl	ag: N	Depth (ft): 15	Depth (ft): 15 feet				
File Info Flag: N	I	Thickness (in):	Thickness (in): 2 inches				
Sieve Info Flag:	N	Liner from	Liner from To: feet				
Screen Info Flag:	N						
		WELL CLOSURE IN	FORMATION:				
Site Info Details	s <b>:</b>	Reason For Clos	Reason For Closure:				
Other Info Flag:		Method of Closi	Method of Closure:				
Other Info Detail	s:	Closure Sealant	Closure Sealant Material:				
		Closure Backfil	LI Material:				
		Details of Clos	sure:				
Screen from	to feet	Туре	Slot Size				
Casing from	to feet	Diameter	Material	Drive Shoe			
0	55	6	Steel	Y			
GENERAL REMARKS:							
ESTIMATED WELL YIELD 15-20 USGPM							
LITHOLOGY INFORMATION:							
From U to IU Ft. Medium CLAY & BOULDERS brown							
From 10 to 55 Ft. Medium SAND & GRAVEL 15 U.S. Gallons per Minute brown							
Return to Main							

- Return to Search Options
- Return to Search Criteria

### Information Disclaimer

![](_page_63_Picture_0.jpeg)

Easement and Statutory Right of Way

![](_page_63_Picture_2.jpeg)

![](_page_64_Picture_0.jpeg)

# 63905

THIS INDENTURE made the grad day of sech, A.D. 1963.

BETWEEN :

WYNNDEL BOX & LUMBER CO. LTD., a company incorporated under the laws of the Province of British Columbia and having its head office at the Settlement of Wynndel in the said Province.

(Hereinafter called "the Grantor")

AND :

10

535/134942 )

134251 S- Planex

ETHEL MARY WILSON, of the Settlement of Sanca, in the Province of British Columbia, (Widow)

(Hereinafter called "the Grantee")

WHEREAS the Grantor is the owner in fee simple of Lot Nine hundred and Thirteen (913), Kootenay District, SAVE AND EXCEPT THEREOUT those parts shown outlined in red on Reference Plans 45336-I, 50803-I and I04344-I and those parts subdivided by Plans Two thousand Bight hundred and Eleven (2811) and Four thousand Eight hundred and Eight (4808);

AND WHEREAS the Grantee is the owner in fee simple of those parts of Lot Nine hundred and Thirteen (913), Kootenay District, subdivided by plans Two thousand Eight hundred and Eleven (2811) and Four thousand Eight hundred and Eight (4808);

WITNESSETH that in consideration of other good and valuable consideration and the sum of One (\$1.00) Dollar now paid by the said Grantee to the said Grantor (the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged) it, the said Grantor, doth hereby grant unto the Grantee, her heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, the right to continue at all times hereafter the use of the existing water pipe-lines constructed and installed by the Grantee or her predecessor in title and it now lying upon or below the surface of the said Grantor's lands and premises described as Lot Nine hundred and Thirteen (913), Kootenay District, SAVE AND EXCEPT THEREOUT those parts shown outlined

in red on Reference Plans 45386-I, 50803-I and 104344-I and those parts subdivided by Plans Two thousand Eight hundred and Eleven (2811) and Four thousand Eight hundred and Eight (4808); TOGETHER WITH the right to enter upon said lands and premises for the purpose of repairing and maintaining the said water pipe-lines;

- 2 -

AND THE GRANTOR doth further grant unto the Grantee, her heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, the right at any time until and including the 30th day of June, 1964 to enter upon the said lands and premises of the Grantor and to remove therefrom all merchantable, saw logs now standing or lying on the Grantor's said lands and premises;

AND THE GRANTOR COVENANTS AND AGREE' with the Grantee not to be engaged or interested in anyway, directly or indirectly until the 30th day of June, 1964, in the tourist camp, trailer camp, resort area or store business, on the said lands and premises of 'he Grantor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Grantor has hereunto affixed its corporate seal in the presence of its proper officers the day and year first above mentioned.

needatered one standard of / the time

19 63, on application received at any written or etamored on the application written or etamored on the application.

Registered the 22 -day of July

63905-20

THE CORPORATE SEAL OF WYNNDEL BOX & LUMBER CO. ITd. was hereunto affixed in the presence of :

Monrad Wigen Director

Difector y

Acknowledgmant of Officer of Corporation 3-62. From No. 107

The Willson Stationery Co. Ltd. - Clarke & Stuart Co. Ltd.

# Acknowledgment of Officer of a Corporation

I HEREBY CERTIFY that, on the Brd at Creston JACK C. WIGEN

### oathout

Director

appeared before me and acknowledged to me that he is the Wynndel Box & Lumber Co. Ltd.

who subscribed his name to the annexed instrument as Wynndel Box & Lumber Co. Ltd. Wynndel Box & Lumber Co. Ltd.

day of 2.140 . 19 63, , in the Province of British Columbia, KWK268 NEARING HARVEREN PROVED VIN THE PERSON ON , where personally known to me, Director of , and that he is the person Director of the said and affixed the seal of the

to the said Instrument, that he was first duly authorized to subscribe his name as aforesaid, and affix the said scal to the said Instrument, and that such corporation is legally entitled to hold and dispose of land in the Province of

> IN TESTIMONY whereof I have hereunto set my Hand and Seal of Office, at in the Province of British Columbia, this 3. day of Hameli Jerne one thousand nine hundred and sixty-three.

> > A Notany Public IN ANG for the Troy

registered the 11 day of / / the time Registered the 12-day of July

written or stamped on the availation

63905-2

NOTE-Where the person making the acknowledgment is personally known to the officer taking the same, strike out the words in brackets

![](_page_66_Picture_12.jpeg)

63906

63905

62906 Park Stationers Ltd., Vancouver, B.C. Law and Commercial Stationers Form No. 61-64

AGREEMENT FOR SALE OF LAND

This Agreement

![](_page_67_Figure_0.jpeg)